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CONDITION

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In the 160 years since its founding in 1832, the Wheelook ocongre-~
gation has worshipped for the most part in three different physical . "
settings. Its first servioe -~ and the first Presbyterian service in
what is now Oklahoma =~ was held under a towering oak near the newly
established Wheelock Mission. A few benches had been made by splitting
logs and boring holes in them for legs. The pulpit was a surplus wooden
box. Indians wandering in from the surrounded woods to join in the sing~
ing of hymns:they had learned in Mississippi. Rev. Alfred Wright gave
the sermon.

ILater that fall the firgt of a dozen log buildings that would serve
the mission was completed. -The congregation moved insgide and it was in
this erude building, on the second Sunday in December, that the congre-
gation was officially organized. For more than ten years it served as a
combination church and school house.

In 1845, with mission and academy in more adequate buildings, the
desire for a more suiteble place of worship led the congregation to decide
on a church of stone. People of the community contributed both money
and labor. Additional financial support came from established Presby-
terian churches in the north and east.

Wheelock Church, looking much as it does today, was finished in
1846, Stones that went into its 20-inoch-thick walls were taken from the
“ground near the churoh and chiseled into _shape by hand. Windows were .
deeply recessed., The pulpit was hand-carved. Poews had solid, one-piece
board backs some 20 inches wide. A vaulted ceiling arched over the main
floor end balcony. Dimensions of the still solid strudture arée aPifoXi-
mately 40 x 50 feet. The traditional wooden steeple over the plain, front
entrance on the west, is some 35 feet high. Towering oaks still shade
the grassy churchyard, as they do the fenced-in cemetery aoross the country
road & few yards to the southesst.

The ohurch has had its ups and downs, however. In 1866 a fire vir-
tually destroyed the mission on the east. Wheelook Church itself stood
roofless until 1884 and services returned to makeshift quarters as the.
Academy struggled back to its feet. Restoration work on the mission

_ facility began in 1882 under leadership of Rev. John Edwards. By 1884
all of the buildings had been restored, including the church itaelf. I
has been in service ever since, occasionally only for weddings, funerals
and other special occasions, but since 1946 once agein on a regular
Sunday schedule,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Wheelock Church, as a congregation, dates back to 1832, when
it was organized by Rev. Alfred Wright as the core of his mission
effort among the Choctaw~ Indians, “then being removed from Mississippi.

As & stone, steapled place of worship, Wheelock Church dates from

1846, making it the oldest church building.standing.in Oklahoma today.

Its nearly century and a half of gervice -~ first to the Choctaw
Nation, then to the State of Oklahome =-- would thus seem to eminently
qualify it for inclusion in the National Register, a status already
sccorded Wheelock Academy, the educational arm of the Wright miesion-
ary effort.

Rev. Wright, a native of Connecticut end a graduate of AndoverT
Seminary in 1814, started his work among the Choctaws in Mississippi
in 1820, He followed "The Trail of Tears" with them to Indian Territory
in 1832 and worked among and for them until his death March 31, 1853,
His grave is one of many in the pleasantly tree-shaded Wheelock bury-
ing ground. _

The Wrights arrived in this far southeastern corner of Indian
Territory, with some 600 Choctaws, in September 1832, The first
Presbyterian service was held shortly thereafter ... under a towering
oak with some split-log benches and an ordinary wooden box serving es
pulpit. The service opened with Indians singing the old hymns they
had learned in Mississippi. Rev. Wright, of course, preached the
sermon.,

That fall a dozen log buildings were erected. And on the second
Sunday of December 1832, in the first complsted building, the first
Presbyterian church™in the territory was established,  Jolning vere
thirty members of the Mississippl Congregation, plus seven new onese.
Wheelock Chureh had been born.

Wheeloek Aoademy developed rapidly, meanwhile, from a day school
in 1833, to & regular seminery, for girls, founded (in 1842) by the
Choctaw Council. WMrs. Wright became the school's first principal. By
1844 its crude log cabins had given way to newer and better buildings
end it was time, the congregation conédluded, that Wheelock Church it-
self had & more fitting home. By 1846 the sturdy stone church --
essentially as one sees it today -~ was completed.
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No. 8. Significance
Wheelook Church

The Civil War disrupted normal life throughout Indian Territory,
however. And crested wide-spread destruction., On top of this & fire,
in 1866, swept Wheelock Mission, leaving little but the Wright home, the
small log school house, and the 20=-ineh=thick stone wells of Wheelock
Church. For & decade and a half the mission/academy eree was virtually
abandoned. But in 1882-restoration work began_unden—leadershlp of Rev.
-a—;>John Edwards, descendent of the famed Dr¢_Johnathen Edwards. In 1883
the Choctaw Council voted funds for the erection of new buildings. And
in 1884 the well-known Robe family of missionaries and teachers was
assigned to Wheelock. From then until the present academy and church
have followed somewhat divergent paths. (Wheeloek Academy, at the time
of writing, stands sbandoned, its future status in doubt.)

Wheelock Church wag used regulerly for religious service from its
restoration until 1900. From then until 1946 it served primarily for
weddings and funerals. In that latter year interest in the old stone
church among Presbyterian congregations in southeastern Oklahoma led to 4
an official reorganizetion of Wheelook Church. Regular religious services
have been held there ever since. The church itgelf, and the cemetery,
weore recently purchased by the fresbyterian Ghureh. Us. S. (South) for
preservetion as a significant tribute to the Presbyterian missionary .
effort among the Indiens end as & fittlng personal memorial_to e beloved
&nd respeoted man of God.

As missionary, physician, and transletor of the Bible into the
Choctaw language, Rev. Wright served the Choctaws long and well., The
years from 1820 to 1853 add up to a third of & century. As to how well
he served, there ig the case of Kilishote, a young, full-blood Choctaw
boy, one of some 600 members of Wright's Wheelock Church over the yesrs.
So much did Kilishote admire Rev. Wright he discarded his Choctaw name
and assumed the name Allen Wright. He subsequently became Principal
Chief of the Chootew Nation. By virtue of having suggested "Oklshoma"
as the name for the proposed Indian Territory, this in 1866, he also
became the soscalled "father"™ of Oklahoma.
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